IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA
(LAND DIVISION)
AT DAR ES SALAAM
LAND CASE NO. 55 OF 2022

JACKSON W. ELIPHASI ......cccivvasncenseccsssssonsrncusssssnsassnsorasses 15T PLAINTIFF

FRANK MUSARI ....coonnnssonsssannsorssonnniny sbnsspissaussssainnssansisensenss 20 PLATNTIFF

MUNSA TRADING ENTERPRISES ........ccoovmmmrrennnnnnninnnnnsnnnnns 300 PLAINTIFF
VERSUS

RAHIM SHABAN ........cociniimmnnnnnnnsenscsnmsesnnssssssnssnsnsnnsassesss 15T DEFENDANT
JOYCE MALAI ....cornssnssansssssusmansonssarssssnssusunsnssssspusysnssninenn. 270 WEFENDANT
VICTOR MATONDANE .......ccoivmmimmnmnn s 3R0 DEFENDANT
NAOMI AMBWENE ......ciiccsosmsssnunssssssasinsnssnnsunnssnsnmnpasssissnse 0 DEFENDANT
ECO BANK TANZANIA LIMITED .....c.cceisnimmnnsisnnnsssnnnssennsnnss 30 DEFENDANT
LONG XING INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ......ccornnmnnrmnnsnnnnanns 6™ DEFENDANT
STEAM GENERATION RECOVERY LIMITED ........covuvunnnnnnns 7™ DEFENDANT

Date of last Order: 25/04/2023
Date of Judgment: 18/05/2023
RULING

I. ARUFANI, J

This ruling is for the preliminary objections on points of law raised
by the counsel for the 2™, 37, 4" 5™ and 7" defendants which read as
follows:-

1. This honourable court has no jurisdiction to entertain this suit

because it is hopelessly time barred for all intents and

PUIPOSES.



n

2, This honourable court is functus officio to entertain this suit
in view of the decision of this honourable court delivered on
11" June, 2021 by Hon. Madam Justice Maghimbi in Land
Case No. 426 of 2017 filed by the 37 plaintiff against the 5
and 6" defendants in the suit, |
3. The suit before this honourable court is an abuse of the court
process because it doe.§ not have j&risa?’cﬁon to entertain this
- matter in view of the notice of appeal filed in this honourable
court on 28" June, 2021, - |
4. The suit is bad in law since .ft offends the mandatory
" provisions of section 8 of the Civil Procedure Code, Cap 33
R.E 2019 in view of Civil Appeal No. 57 of 2022 filed by the
37 plaintiff against the decision of the honourable court in
Land Case 426 of 2017 whir':h was delivered by the
honourable Maghimbi, J on 1 1f’" June, 2021. .

While the plaintiffs were represeﬁted in the matter by the firm of
Chuwa and Company advocates, the 2nd, 31d 4th 5t and 7% defendants
were represented in tﬁe matter by the ﬁr.m of Locus Attorneys. Hearing
of the matter was ordered to proceed éx_ parte against the 1%t and 6t
defendants as they were dully served but failed to abpear in the court. By
consent of the counsel for the parties the matter was argued by way of

written submissions.

The counsel for the 29, 314 4th, 5“", and 7* defendants (henceforth
the defendants) stated in relation to the first point of preliminary objection
that, the suit filed in the court by the plaintiffs is hopelessly time barred.
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He argued that, as the suit filed in the court by the plaintiffs is based on
contract, then as provided under section 3 (1) read together with item 7
of Part I of the.Schedule to.the Law.of Limitation Act,.Cap 89, R.E 2019
(hereinaftef referred in Shért as fhe’LLA), ought to bé ﬁled. in the court

within six years from the date on which the contract was executed.

He argued that,‘.‘as the plaintiffs’ suit is based on Memorandum of
agreement dated 7t 'becember, 2015 in \-;vhich"the 3rd pIainfifF company
pledged its property known as Plot No. 63 Block E, located at Kariakoo
Area in fhe City of Dar es Salaam held under Certificate of Title No. 38634
(henceforth the suit property) to secure the loan "advanced‘ to-the 6%
defendant, the suit ought to be filed in the court by 7t December, 2021.
He submitted that, as the suit was filed in fhe court on 17% March, 2022

it is hopelessly time barred and should be dismissed with costs.

In expounding the ab.ove submission, he stated that, as averred at
paragraph 8 of the plaint the cause o;‘-action upon which the suit is based
is fraud, whereby the plaintiffs claim the defendants conspired and forged
the signature 6f one Regnald Frank Musari in procur@ng phe co.rporate
guarantee agreement of the 3" plaintiff company who is now a deceased.
He argued that, the stated corporate guarantee agreement was produced
as exhibit P2 in Land Case No. 426 of 2017.. He stated that, when the

mentioned Land case No. 426 of 2017 was filed in the court on 29



November, 2017 the plaintiffé were aware of the alleged fraud. He

submltted the stated allegatlon of fraud on sngnature of Regmald Musan
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ought to be made in the mentloned case

He went on submitting that, raising the s:talted claim of fraud in the
present case which was filed |n -th'e dodrt’ on. 17%-March, 2022 is an
afterthought: He 'referfed thecourtto the ca:'ses 'ot; N_-BC-AL'-ilmited &
Another V. Bruno Vitus Swalo‘,lGi_iviI.::App‘eaI No. 351 of t2019, CAT at
Mbeya and M. M. Worldwide Training Company Limited & Two
Others V. National Bank of Commerce Limited, Civil Appeal No. 258
of 2017, CAT at DSM (Both unreported) where it was. stated that, a time
limit set for suit found on contract as provided under itemi'7 of Part I of
the Schedule to the LLA is six y'ea"rs'- t’tdm.the date-on whicld- the cause of

action accrued.

‘He argued in relation to the seg:end point of preliminary objection
that, after the court delivered the ]udgment in Land Case No. 426 of 2017
on 11* June, 2021 it became functus oﬁr cioto entertain the third plaintiff's
claims emanating from the collateral agreement dated 7“" December,
2015 in which the suit land was b‘tedged to _the 5th d_refend_antlas a collateral
for the loan advanced to the 6 defendaat yvhich to'date remain unpaid.
He cited in his submission sectidn 9 of. the Civil Procedure Code which

bars courts to try any suit or issue ih:which .the matter directly and
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substantially in issue has been dirrectly and substantially in issue in the

former suit between the same parties or their privies.

He argued that; the-legal iﬁplicaﬁo_n of the decision made by the
court in the above ciﬁed cése_is' -fo_reﬁdér tHe court functus officio in
determine the same cause of :action 'ﬁled in the _court by' the plaintiffs
against the defendants on the i‘sam_e,trémsaction. He .referred the court to
the case of Kogel Fahrzeﬁgwerke V. ‘Li'berty Traﬁscargo Limited,
Misc. Commercial Application No. 288 of 2015, HC Com. Div. at DSM
(unreported) where it was stated _that, the maxim functus officio means
no court when it has signed its judgment or ﬁnal Qrder disposing of a case
shall alter or review the same except to correct a clerical or arithmetical

error.

He stated the final order with regards to the plaintiffs lacking cause
of action against the defendants'.was signed when the court dismissed
Land Case No. 426 of 2017 making the cl:ourt‘funcjtus officio to entertain
the current matter which is based on thé_ same ‘subject matter. He stated
the decision in Land Case No. 426 of 2017 is still binding upon the parties.
He submitted that, as all courts are bounci by the stated principle the court
is not justified to reopen and determine the mattér basing on the same

cause of action which was previously dismissed by the court.



He went on explaining how the Court of Appeal determined the issue
of a person who was not a party in a former suit for the. pureose of
application"ef'de!ctrine of rés ‘jl;idi(‘:été.“i.h.ef'é:as‘e"éé stated in"the case of
Lotta V. Tanaki & Others [2003j.'52 EA556 and related the same with
the matter determined by the court |n th‘eALand Case No. 426 of 2917 and
the matter in the case at hand. He argued that, the plainttffs have
pretended to alleged fraud in thevpreseﬁt -case to distinguish the present
case from the previous case and added the first and second plaintiffs in
the case to show parties are diﬁ’ere‘nt.'He argued it was stated in the ease
of Salomon V. Sslomon & Co. Limited, [1896] UKHL 1, [1897] AC 22
that, once a company is registeregj, it becomes a -Iegal person and it can

sue and be sued on its name.

He submitted that, inclusion of the 1% and 24 plaintiffs in the case
is a mere academic exercise and it has-no any Iegalﬁ consequences in so
far as the liabilities of the 3™ plaintiff towards the 5™ defendant with
regard to the collateral used to secure the loan advanced 'to the 6
defendant by the 5% defendant Is'cence__rn. He went on arguing that, the
3™ plaintiff filed the instant case in the eourt against the first defendant
in the pretext of distinguishing the present case from Land Case No. 426
of 2017. He stated that has nothmg to aSSISt in so far as the decision in

the mentioned case is concern because the record of the matter shows



Rahimu Shaban appeared in the c'ou_rt on behalf of the 6% defendant and
adduced evidence to defend the 6% defendant. |
"~ He stated that; the r2".d;-3“d:and 45“-deﬁendants-in the instant matter
were officers of the th ‘defendant";hence‘ they -cannot be' sued on their
own. He stated that, the 6th defendant was 2nd defendant in the previous
suit thIe the 7t defendant |s an agent of the 5th defendant engaged to
dlspose of the collateral SO as to recover the loan advanced to the th
defendant plus interest. He subrnltt_ed tha_t, the position of the law in
determination of whether a party ‘},vas -priv,y to another party in the former
“suit is whether the person who was not a party in the former suit had a
common interest in the subject m_'atter;of the forrner suit. He argued the
stated test is appliedlin the doctrine of res ]udlcata He .argued :the 1%t and
20 plaintiffs had comrnon i-n'teres‘t}-in‘ the matter as were 'directors of the
3rd plaintiff. | | |
He joined‘ and argued the 3™ aﬁd 4*“,-points’of forelirninary objection
together which ]iterally.states the court has no jur[sdittion to entértain the
matter in view of the notice of appeal ﬁl'ed: in the court o'n 28" J'one, 2021
and Civil Appeal' No. 57 of 2@22 filed in the Court of Appeal by 31 plaintiff
against the decision made by th'is court in l?_and Case No. 426 of 2(517 and
it is also offending section 8 of the Civfl Pr'ocedureCode. _He stated the

defendants filed in the court their twritten statement of defence along with




the preliminary objections which are being determined in this ruling on

12t April, 2022.

He stated that, after the oiaintiffs being served \,Nith": tne‘written
statement of defence of the defendants they filed in the court their reply
to the defendants written statement of defence accompanied with two
copies of the order of the Court of Appeai‘dated 28t April, 2022 showing
the Civil Appeal No. 57 of 2022 o,riginating‘ from Land Case No. 426 of
2017 decided by this court and Civil Application No. 449/17 of 2621 arising
from Civil Appeal No. 57 of 2022 between the 3" plaintiff versus the 5
and 6™ defendants had been withdfawn from the Court of Appeal. He
stated the Civil Application No. 449/1? of 2021 was filed in the Court of
Appeal by the 3" plaintiff seeking for- an otder of injunction against the
5t 6% and 7t defendants and an'order of restraining the 7t" defendant
from disposing of the suit property following dismissal of Land Case No.

426 of 2017 by this court on 11* June, 2021.

He submitted the stated orders ‘attac:hed to the reply to the written
statement of defence of the defendants should be ignored by the court in
determination of the preliminary objections raised in the present matter
by the counsel for the defendants. He supported his submission with the
case of John M. Byomalirwa V. Agency Maritime Internationale

(Tanzania), [1983] TLR 1 and Mukisa Biscuit Manufacturing Co.



" Limited V. West End Distribut'drs Limited, [1969] EA 696 where it
was stated that, in determine whether-'tﬁhé blaint discloses a cause of

actlon, It is only the plalnt not a reply to the defence or any other pleading

that should be:conSIdered. L ;‘_'.'f. .

W|thout pre]udxce te (wh'at he subrnltted herelnabove he argued
that, W|thdraw of the notlce of appeal and C|V|I Appeal No. 57 of 2022
from-the Court of Appeal WhICh were challenglng, the deC|51on made by
this court in Land Case No. 426 ot 2017 was rnade by Advocate Stephen
Ally Mwakibolwa on 8™ April, 2022 while the suit at hand (Land Case no.
55 of 2022) was t‘ led in the court oh l?t“ March 2022 He submitted that,
w1thdraw of the: appeal and the CIVI| appllcat|on from the Court of Appeal
was done to C|rcumvent the 3" and- 4“‘ prellmlnary objections filed in the

L

court by the counsel for the defendants

t

He submltted that the plalntn"fs eounsel became aware of the
prellminary obJectlon ralsed in the matter after being f‘ led in an appllcatlon
for temporary -[ﬂ]UﬂCthI’l sought in Land Appllcatton. No. 115 of 2022
served to them on 1%t April, 2022 when the apphcatlon was comlng for
hearlng He stated that, fi I1ng in the Court of Appea[ the notlce to W|thdraw
the notice of appeal and appeal WhICh was chaIIengmg the deC|SIon of thIS
court made in Land Case. No. 426 of 2017 was intended to rectlfy the

defects of Land Case No. 55 of 2022
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He referred the court to the case of Standard Chartered Bank &
Others, Civil Application No. 2'22..of'2016 CAT at DSM, and Emmanuel
Lyabonga & Another V. F R Econ Case No 3 of 2017, HC at Irmga C|ted
in the case of Bahadurah E Shamz: & Another V The Treasury
Registrar, Mmlstry of Flnance Tanzanla ClVlI Appeal No. 4 of 2003
(All unreported). Wthh prmdpally |t was- stated once obJect|on has been
lodged in the court, it is no Ionger open or approprlate to the appellant to
remedy the defi C|ency complalned therem He based on the afore stated
submissions to pray the court to upheld their points of prehmmary

!

objections and dismiss the plalnt|ffs suut W|th costs

In response to the submisslon by the _c'ounsel for the defendants,
Advocate Edward Peter Chuwa fi led in the court the submission of the
plaintiffs WhICh states that the submnssron by the counsel for the
defendants is devoid of merlt and he has labored h[mself in dlstortlng the
facts of the case and mlsleadmg the court»on the settled legal principles.
He stated the first obJectlon IS prem|sed on the t|me Iimltatlon of the cause

of action and the counsel for the defendants argued that, as the suit is

based on contract it ought to be filed in the cOurt within six years..

He stated the counsel" for the defendants referred the court to the
memorandum of agreement dated 7th December, 2015 in which the 3

plalntlff pledged the swt property to secure the Ioan advanced to the 6th
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defendant by the 5t defendant. Hefsu’bmi;tted- that is misdirection as well
as mlsconceptlon of the pleadmgs He referred the court to the claims of
the plaintiffs as' averred at paragraph 8 of the plamt -and- the rellefs sought
in the plaint and -_s_tated that, the_plalntlffs cause of action’ is based on
corporate guarantee agreement 'issued.‘ by the 3" plaintiff as the security
for the Ioan -a‘d\l"fanced. to the 6'”‘; deiiendant dated 12t ‘Febr_uary, 2016
which is atieged it was forged He stated the c'aL’ise!' of action is also based
on board resolutlon dated 12th December 2016 and the mortgage deed

dated 24t January, 2016 aIIeged were fraudulent[y obtained.

He premis‘ed hist subrnission on the documents upon which the
cause of actlon of fraud and forgery |s alleged to have ansen He stated
that, the posntlon of the [aw as provrded under sectlon 6 () of the Law of
Limitation Act is that, the rlght'of actlron‘ ma ‘surt for damages for mducmg
a party to break a contract is deerned- to ha\fe accrued on theédate of the
breachk'He also referred the court to' section 7 of the same law which
provides that, where there lS contmumg breach of contract or contlnumg
wrong 1ndependent of a contract 3 fresh per|od of I|mrtat|on shall begin
to run at every 'moment of the ttm,e ‘which the breach or the wrong as the

case may be occurred.

He argued that, even. if it will be sai_d=_the alleged memorandum of

agreement dated 7™ December, 20,',15 is.a contract forming the cause of
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action in the plaintiffs’._suit,’._time would start to run not from the date of

execution but on the date of breachl To hold otherwise, would lead into
absurdity as partres enter |nto contract W|th expectatlons that their wishes

would be met and not to bnng case to the court He submltted one cannot

, .
V.
[

hold lmmedlately after. S|gn|ng the contract the cause of actlon arose.

He went- on submitting that;-.it' cannot be' said the’.date of the
contract embodied in the "corpc%)rate“_crjuararite‘e agreem‘ent which is an
integral part of the facility datedl 12th December 20‘16 establ'ished when
the cause of actlon arose as the cause of action arose from the date of
the breach of the facility Ietter He went on argumg that the I|ab|||ty of
the guarantor only arises, after the default of the prmc:pal debtor He
stated further that the facility would not mature before October, 2016
and the liability of the guarantor would only arise upon demand He
submitted that, as the prmc1pal debtor has not repald the Ioan thereis a

contlnumg breach and t|me accrued on every year.

He stated another aspeCt, of "cau_se of action is the forgery and
fraudulently procured mottgage ‘ deed dated_ 24" January, 2016. He
argued that, mortgage of right of occupancy is a land matter and it is one
of the land disposition others being sale and lease. He stated that, when
one is alleging that a mortgage is vord he is essenttally cla|m|ng for the

removal of an encumbrance on h|s rlght of occupancy and for recovery or
i

‘ L‘-".‘.‘lzv L.



repossession of his land free from‘\an'yfencumbrance. He submitted as the
plaintiffs alfeged the 5" and 7t defendants haue advertised to sale their
landina newspaper dated 16th August 2021 |t means the cause of actlon
in this respect is founded on land whose time I|m|t as per |tem 22 of Part

I of the schedule to the Law of L|m|tat|on Act is 12 years.

He went on argumg that ‘another aspect of the plalntlffs clarm is
that the above stated transactlons were procured by forgery and fraud
He submitted the alleged fraud |s admltted by the defendants in their
defence only that they have wrongly argued the knowledge of the fraud
in respect of the forgery was before filing of Land case No.- 426 of 2017
in the court. He stated from the proceedings of the mentioned case and
Ietter dated- 21St February,'. 2022: from 'L0cus Attorney annexed in the
written statement of defence shows the plalntlffs got know[edge of the
fraud in the course of hearmg of the matter and on 8" September 2021

they reported the matter to the pollce force a[leglng fraud In fine he

stated the fraud was dlscovered by the plamtlff in 2021

He referred the court .to ‘section 26 of the Law of .Limitation Act
which states the period of limitation for proceedings"based on fraud does
not begin to run until when the plamtlff has dlscovered the fraud To
support h|s submrssron he C|ted in-. hlS submrssmn the case of Mr. Eric

John Mmarl V. MIS Herkl_n Bulldersi Ltd, Com. Case No. 138 of 2019

- 13



HC Com. Div. at DSM (unreported) ié;h'ere various cases including the case
of Murphy V. Joe O'Toole & Sons Ltd & Another [2014] IEHC 486
were cited to show the cauﬁé?bﬁétfiqn in a clontra‘ct_rhus‘t be the date on
which a breach occurs and nbt the a_ate;\;vheﬁ the contract is made.

He submitted in relation to-',the.:‘-a.rgu‘r.r1erbtt; that the allegation of' fraud
and forgery on t‘he' corporate gu!afan't'ée a_greement and the legal
mortgage basing o.n'! the fdrger;} of’}sig.nature of“' Reginald. .Musari is an
afterthought as it ought to have been‘raised'in Land Case No. 426 of
2017, He argued the stated arguf;]gnt'is misconceived as the issue of
fraud was not raised in the fnentionc;._d-case. He sta_ted the 3" plaintiff was
not in possession of the original documents referred above and that is
why she gave notice to proauce in _th'e éfore mentioned case. He arguéd
that, to alleged and submit the aIIe.gléd fraud and forgéry were within the
knowledge of the plaintiff aflong tfme before ﬁling. of- the suit in the court

is wrong.

He submitted that, in case of fraud the time starts to run from
February, 2021 and if it is alleged |s from v'{}hen the Land Case No. 426 of
2017 was in'stitute.d in the court, thénlit‘-is- fror;1 29" November, 2017 and
therefore the suit is still within the ti‘me. He stated that, the argﬁment that
the allegation of fraud ought to bé. raised when Land Case No. 426 of

2017 was filed in the court is baseless.
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As for the second objection the: cOUnsel for the plaintiff argued that,
the counsel for the defendants have falled to convince the court it is
functus oﬁ“cro and how. this case 1s SImllar to the Land Case No 426 of
2017. He stated the case’ 6f Kogel Fahrzeugwerke (supra) which
dlscussed the maxim functus oﬁ'cro |s not appllcab[e in the present suit
hence it is dlstlngurshable He stated the counsel for the defendants
equated the prlnC|pIe of functus off' CIO and res ]udlcata and submltted
that, the case is not rés ]udlcata as argued by the counsel for the
defendants. He referred the‘ court to.:_secti‘on 9_‘of the CPC and the case of
Peniel Lotta V. Gabriel Tanaki & Others, -[2003] TLR 312 which
interpret the principle of res judicata'and submitted thel present suit is not

res judicata.

He stated the présent ‘suit is nc‘)t r-fa's{?judiéa‘ta because the parties in
the former suit are not the same as partles in'the current suit. He stated
the 15t and 2" plamtlffs were not partles ln the former suit. He stated the
argument that the 1t and 2" plamtrﬁ’s are dlrectors and shareholders of
the 3 plaintiff and their inclusion in the current suit does not distinguish
them from the former suit is very w_rpng. He stated the case of Salomon
V. Salomon (supra) and section :15-of-the Compan'i:es“ Act su'pp.orts their

case as they state directors and shareholdérs of a company are distinct

15



persons in law from the company. Hé argued that, the company can sue
or be suéd in its own name,. |

He stated the argument .that inclusioni of the 1% and 2™ plaintiffs in
the instant suit is an academic exer'ci‘;e,doe_s ndt have any consequences
as regards the liabilities of -the 3*-d piaintiﬁ‘ is misconceived as that is a
matter need tc; be proved by ‘evidence.. He added that, only the 5t aﬁd
6" defendants were parties .in the- former suit and thé rest of the
defendants in the present suit were not partiés in the former suit. He
stated fhat shows the elemgnt of the same parties to be in both suits for
the purpose of applicabi.lity of the‘doctrine of res judicata has ﬁot been

established in the present case.

He argued in relation to thé element of the subject matter in the
former suit and the current suit to be tHe same that, the counsel for the
defendant has failed to assist the court to know how the two cases
resemble on the subject matter. He.argued that, while the summary of
the former case made in the judgmenf_of the court states the claims of
the 3™ plaintiff was seeking for declaratory order that the 5t defendant
bank was unIaWi‘ulIy withholding ce_rfiﬁcate of the suit property, tHe issue
of fraud, forgery, or.illegality of the mortgage deed was never raised in
the former suit and was not an issue. He stated that, while the ;Iaim of

the plaintiff in the former suit was TZS 900,000,000/=, the claims of the
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plaintiffs in the current suit as stated at paragraphs 8, 20 and 21 of the
plaint is not containing the stated' daim He submitted that, as-the

h!l

elerments of res ]udlcata are, requrred 10. apply conJunctlvely and. not
d|SJunct|ver the second obJectlon has falled v

"-"t‘ g
11"'-. S

- Although the COUnse]_%-'fdrf.thei'"defiendants a_r;g‘ued. the 3“1- and 4th
objections together but the gounsel' -fbr ‘the plaintiffs_ argued them
sebarately. He stated in reIatidn’to___j_the‘ 3rd _objection that, although the
counsel for the defendant argued th'ere is"a.- pending notice of appeal filed
in the court on 28" June, 2021 but the partlculars of the stated notice of
appeal were not dlsclosed in the prehmlnary obJectlon to enable them to
understand the same and get prepared for hearlng of the same He went
on arguing that, as the counsel for the defendant argued that notice of
appeal in CIVI| Appeal No. 57 of 2022.and Civil Applicatron No. 449/17 of
2021 in the Court of Appeal upon WhICh the third objection is based have

been withdrawn the ob]ectlon has been overtaken by event

He argued that, the‘ stated appeal and application filed and

~withdrawn from the Court of Appeal by Advocate Stephen Mwakibolwa

have no relationship whatsoever with this matter. He stated the difference
between the stated two matters can be seelng on the parties and subject
matters involved therem which are dn‘ferent He stated the argument by

the counsel for the defendants that the matters fi Ied in 1 the Court of Appeal
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were.withdrawn to pre-empt thelr obJectlons should not be accepted as
the court cannot close its eyes and ho_ld:there is an appeal pendtng in the
court of appeal while there is no app'eall ?He stated' the case of Standard
Chartered Bank (supra) is dlstlngu15hable to the present case because
m the referred case there was a prayer 'to amend the record while there
was prellmlnary ob]ectton touchlng on the same appllcatlon He stated the

appeal and appllcatlon stated were in the Court of Appeal have already

been W|thdrawn in accordance with the Court of Appea! Rules.

| He arguecl in retation to the fourth' point of preliminary objection
that, from the wording of sectiori 8 of the Civil Procedure Code it is
misconceived as there is no matter between the same parties on the same
subject matter vrhich is pending in thde"co‘urt He submitted though Land
Case No. 426 of 2017 |s not the same as the current suit but |ts judgment
has already been dehvered hence the doctrme of res sub JUdlCe cannot
apply. He based on the above submlssmn to pray the court to dismiss the

objections with costs.

In their ‘rejoinder the. counset, for ﬁthe-:d'efendants reiterated their
submission in chief. It was stat'ed ‘by,the coun‘sel for the detendants that,
the memorandum of acceptance by} guarantor al[eged- was forged was
executed on 12t I;ebruary,,2016‘and signed by the Directors of the 3™
plaintiff namely Jackson W. Lema;:"(l"sft__f?[aintiff)'and Regtna'l'd Musari

7. 18-



together with 6th 'defendant as aborrower and"'S”; defendant -as the
lender/bank. He argued that, as the’ f rst p!arntlff signed the memorandum
of acceptance by the guarantor and there is. nowhere stated his- 5|gnature
was forged the plamtlffs cannot iustlfy thelr allegat|ons that there was
forgery which could ;h,ave not been',drscoyered on theda_te of execution of
the corporate guarantee ag:reeni‘entllHe"subm(itted that, counlting from
12t February, 2016-the ]Imi‘tation' period of six 'years‘ expired on 1ith
February, 2022, hence the current smt f led in the court on 17 March

2022 is beyond tlme frame f xed by the Iaw

He argued rthat aIthough anneXUre “H” in the plaint-'does not
dlsclose the date of the ordlnary meetlng but itis dated 17th March, 2016.
He stated it means that wrth reasonable dillgence the plarntlffs should
have dlscovered the alleged forgery latest by 17% March, 2016. He
submitted countlng from 17t March 2016 the six years limitation of tlme
for the plaintiffs to file the current swt on the allegatlons of fraud was on
16th March, 2022 Wthh was beyond the tlme permltted by the law. He
submltted that shows the court has :no Jurrsdlctlon to entertain the case

which is time barred'.

' He adopted his rejoinder in reSoe’ct,'.-of the' first point of preliminary
objection as his rejoinder in respect of .the second p_oint of preliminary

objection. He argued that, si_ncke’?‘:t'he case on corporate guarantee
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agreement is time barred even the ailegations\ on forgery of the Board

resolution is time barred; hence the court has no jurisdiction to link it with

o '
ot
S s,

R B I

a case which is tirn;‘e'.barrled‘.fl *“ L e

| He V\rent‘on rejoining t'hez‘ Su't;miesion ;oi;.th-e counsel for the 'plaintifts
in respect of the. third pomt of ob]ection that the argument by the counsel
for the plaintiffs that as the plaintiffs alieged the 6th and 7th defendants
had advertised sale of their Iand then the cause of action is founded on
land whose time Iimit is twelve years is misconception of the point of law
with regards to the limitation of time. He su_bmitted' the suit before the
court is not about recovery of lanci v_\ihi_ch is stated' under item 22 of Part
I of the Schedule to the Law of L‘imitation Act its limitation of time is twelve

years.

He statecl that the iss‘ue befo're t_he.'cour‘t is when the right of action
for the plaintiffs begun with regards to the aIIegations that the mortgage
deed.dated 24*" January, 2016 is nuli and v01d on account of forgery and
fraud. He eubrnitted that, as the action remains to be on the .mortgage
deed, mean'inug the contract and_ not recovery of land, the six years
limitation period is applicable. ‘I-ieiustated that ﬂrlnarks the time started to
run against the plaintiffs: from 12“'February, 2(_)16 and makes the_ plaintiffs

cause of action whic_h forms_the third'-poiﬁt of objection time barred.
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He submittecl further. that} there |s ‘nowhere in the defendants’
submission in. chief -the defenda"_nt.‘s‘. ‘p[ainiy admitted the allegation of
fraud. He stated to the contrary the counsel for the defendants maintained
in the submission ln chlef that the allegat|ons of fraud are unfounded and
afterthought WhICh made the plalnt|ffs to f Ie a fllmsy case in the court In
fi ne, he submltted that all causes of actlon of fraud in the plalntlffs case

are time barred and the court has no ]urlsdlct[on to entertaln the plalntiffs

suit and prayed the court to dismiss -it--with\ costs.

‘The court has painstakinglly constdered the detai[ed and well-crafted
submissions from the .counsel for the parties which‘I have ind.evo'ured. to
summarize hereinabove. After, goving through_the pleadings filed in the
court by both sid'es' and applied the-xsame in'the rival .submissi'ons filed in
the court by the counsel for the partles in respect of the points of
preliminary ob]ectlons raised in. the matter by the counsel for the
defendants, the co,urt has found ;the. |s-sue-to determine here is whether
the objections raised by_l the cou:r’jsel tfon t’he defendants deserve to be
uphe[d or not. | “

I will start with the first point of preliminary objection which states
the court has no_j‘urisdiction to ente_rtain the suit" at hand as it'is hopelessly
time barred. The court has found the counsel for t‘he defendantst started

his submission by arguing the pla;intiff_s_' suit is 'ti‘me barred basing on the
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reason that, the dai’ms of the plaintiffs is based on memorandum of
agreement (collatera[ agreement) .dated- 7" December, 2015 in which the
3" plaintiff pledged the suit property to secure the' Ioan advanced to the
6t defendant by the 5th defendant: The counsel for the defendants argued
that, as provided under item 7 of Part I of the Schedule to the LLA the
plaintiffs’ suit which i is based on the stated contract ought to be instituted
in the court within six years from the:date on which the contract was

executed.

The court has found that, a‘Ithdugh‘ lt is net in dispute that' the 3rd
plaintiff entered intoh the stated memorandum of agreement dated 7t
Decemt)er, 2015 and pledged the suit pro_perty as a security. for the loan
advanced to the 6 defendant by the 5t defendant, but after- going
through the plaint the court has failed to see anywhere stated t_he claims
of the plaintiff is based on the stated memorandum of agreement. The
court has found as rightly argued by the counsel for the plaintiff_s the
claims of the pI'aint‘iffs as stated at paragraph 8 of the plaint and in the
relief clause are based on fraud a'nd_ forgery alleged were committed by
the 1t to 6% defendants on the corporate guarantee agreement dated 12t
February, 2016, Board Resolution 'bea'ring .the same date and mortgage

deed dated 24 Jan'uary, 2016.
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The court has arrived to the stated finding after seelng that, even
the counsel for the plaintiffs stated |n hIS subm|55|on that the cIalms of
the pla[ntlffs are"not arising from the memorandum of agreement dated
7t December 2015 He stated |t is arlsmg from the fraud -and forgery
alleged were- commltted by.the‘ 1St to 6th defendants on the mentloned
documents. Wlthout».prejudlce to"what- I have stated herelnahove, the
court:has gone ‘through item 7...of.-f>art I of the Schedule to the LLA which
the counsel for the defendants argued it states a suit found on contract is
required to be mstrtuted in court W|th|n SiX years from when the contract

was executed and fi nd it states the swt founded on contract not otherW|se

prowded for is requrred to be ,l_nstltuted:ln cour_t W|th1n SiX years.t

As the cited provrsuon of the Iaw is not statlng from when the stated
period of six years is reqwred to start countmg, the court has found the
issue to determine here is when the stated siX years is required to start
counting. The c'ourt' has f0undl.:t_h_é _answe_red to the stated-.. issue is
provided under section_ 5 of the LLA which states the Iimitatio(n of time for
instituting anytpro'c‘eeding in courts-.shall start tohac’crue on the date on
which the cause of _action arises. Th_e‘yvording of the cited provision of the
Iaw shows clearly that, if it will be‘ taken the plaintif.fs"cause of action in
the present suit is based on contract the l|m|tat[on of time for |nst|tut|ng

the suit in the court is requrred to start countmg from when the cause of -
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action arose and not from when the partres executed the contract as
submltted by the counsel for the defendants

Having found the cla'irh“s""'df"thfé?‘ I"plaintiffs“‘i's not -basing ‘on the
memorandum - of ';agreementﬁ-‘kl'_clated't 7 ,‘l;)ecember, 2015 but on rthe
allegations of fraud and forgery stated by the; p‘laint‘ifts were committed
by the 1% to 6th defendants on the corporate guarantee agreement dated
12th February, 2016, Board Resolutlon dated 12th February, 2016 and the
~mortgage deed dated 24th Januar.y, 2016, the question to determine here
is when the cause:of action arising ‘from the, a{IIege;d fraud and forgery‘

started to accrue.

The court has found that!_ asl-. limitation 'of‘ltime_fo'r the _claim arising
from fraud and forgen,r is not -..provided f_or in any item of Parl: I of the
Schedule to the LLA the Iimitationﬁof. t_ir'_nefor sugch clair_ns are supposed to
be governed by item 24 of Part:Iiof- the san1e Schedule to the LLA which
states that any smt not othemnse prowded -for rs supposed to be
instituted in court within six years! from rvhen the cause of actlon accrued
The court has .found, as the claims of the plamtlffs are arising from the
allegations of fraud and forgery- then as rightly ‘argued by the counsel for
the plaintiffs and as provided under sectlon 26 of the LLA the period of

limitation for the plamtlffs cause of actlon of fraud started to accrue from

when they dlscovered the alleged ‘fraud. The question is when the
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plaintiffs discovered t}he fraud and forgery alleged are on the documents

stated were forged.

The court has found there is nowhere in the plaint filed in fhe-court
by the plaintiffs pleaded expressly or implied as to when the plaintiffs
discovered the alleged fraud and for_gery. The ar'gu'rﬁents by the counsel
for the defendants js that, the pléintiffs became were aware of theal!eged
fraud and forgery when Land Case No. 426'of 201? was ﬁledlin the.cour't
as the 1% plaintiff who testified in the mentioned case as PW2 stated at
page 27 of the proceedings of the cited case that he signed the cbrporate
guarantee agreement which it is alleged in the preéent case it was forged

by the 1%t to 6™ defendants in the present case.

-The court has found that, even if it will be aécepted the first plaintiff
stated in the testirﬁony, he gave in the mentioned case that he signed the
stated corporate gﬁarantee agreement but'that is not enough to establish
he was aware of the fraud and forgéry aileged is in the said .corporate
guarantee agreement, Board Resolution ahd in the mortgage deed. To
the contrary the court has found, even if it will be said the first and third
plaintiffs were awaré of the éllegedl fraud and forgery when the stated
case was filed in the court but it has not been stated wheﬁ exactly they
became aware of the alleged fraud and forgery so that it can be said from

when they became aware of the alleged forgery and fraud until when the
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present matter was filed in the court __the limitation period for instituting

their claim in the court had expired,

| The counselforthedefendants tr:ed toargue |n thelrreJomderthat
by usmg reasonable dlhgence the plalntiffs Would have dlscovered the
alleged fraud and forgery on 17th March 2016 when the letter annexed in
the plaint as annexure "H” was written to the Managmg Director of the 6%
defendant to show th‘efr inten’éion lof Withd.ravying their gu'arantee because
the process to ge‘tlloan from the bt defendant had taken too long time
and a lot of agreements had beerf.._breai_ched, The court has failed to see
any merit in this argument becauSe there is nothing in the said annexure

showing how it would have caused the pIa|nt|ffs to drscover the alleged .

fraud and forgery

The foregoing fi f nding caused the courtto come to the view that, as
the counsel for the plaintiffs argued the plamtlffs became aware of the
alleged fraud _and forgery at th_;_e.‘t_lme_ _of" ;hearlng Land Case No.- 426 of
2017 and written the Ietter dated21st I%ebru'agry, 2021 concerning the
alleged fraud and forgery it cannotbe said the suit filed in the court on
17" March, 2022 is time barred as from when the p[aintiffs became aware
of the fraud and forgery untll when the swt was f led in the court srx years
provuded under the law for f Irng |n the court a suit arising from fraud had

not expired.
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The court has found the counsel for the defendants argued further

that, the plaintiff cannot ]UStlfy thelr allegatlons that there was a forgery
in: the corporate guarantee agreement Wthh 'was not-discovered by the
Dlrectors of the 3rd- plalntlffs as the corporate guarantee agreement was
srgned by the 15t plaintiff and it has not been stated anywhere in the plaint
that the signature of the 15t plalntlff appearlng in the corporate guarantee
agreement was forged The court has found that it is true that there is
nowhere in the plaint stated th,e srgnature of the 1% plaintiff in the

corporate guarantée agreement was forged.

However, after going 'tihro-ugh’ the plaint the _court has _found
paragraphs 8 and 18 of the p|aint_‘;~de§ rt is"ave_rred the signature of the
1%t plaintiff appearing in the éoard Resolution and Mortgage deed was
forged That being what is 'averrecl in the"‘cited paragraphs of the plaint,
the court has found a mere failure to state in the plaint that the srgnature
of the 1t plalntlff in the corporate guarantee agreement is forged cannot
be taken as a concluswe estabhshment that the suit is time barred as that
is a fact which need to be proved_or dl,sproved 'by getting evrdence from

the parties and it cannot be de’terrnined at_t_his stage of the mat_ter.

While bearing in mind what has been stated herelnabove the court
has found that the posrtlon of the Iaw stated in the case of Mukisa

Biscuit Manufacturing Co Ltd_,)‘(. West End Distributors Ltd, [1969]
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1 EA 696 is that preliminary obj'ection is required to be raised-on a point
of law pleaded by one party in a suit and taken by the other side as a
correct fact and: |t cannot be ra|sed on' pomt WhICh is not- pleaded That
belng the p05|t10n of the Iaw the court has found that the t‘ rst po:nt of
preliminary obJectton raised by the defendants that the plaintiffs’ suit is

t ot

tlme barred cannot be upheld because |t has not been substant[ated by
the counsel for the defendants that the plalnttffs suit was fi Ied in the court
after explratlon of the period of t|me prowded by the law for institution of

fraud case in couirt.

Coming to the second object'ion:the ‘clou'rt ‘has'found the counsel' for
the defendants states the court lS functus oﬁF ao to entertain the suit at
hand because of the decision dellvered by th|s court in Land Case No. 426
of 2017 dated 11t June 2021 The court has found in argumg the stated
objection the counsel for the defendants based his submission on the

doctrine of res Judlcata provuded under sectlon 9 of the CPC

The court is aoreement vyith:the counsel for the defendants that the
nﬁeahing of the term functus oﬁfc:b as stated in the case of Kogel
Fahrzeugwerk (supra) and in the cases'o'f ‘Bibi Kisoko Medard V.
Minister for Lands Housing"_ and’ Orba_n Developments and
Another, [1983] TLR 250 and Mohamed Enterprises (T) Limited V.

Mohamed Nasser [2'013]. EA VoI 1, 249 is:very that, once a matter is
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finally disposed of by a court, the said court is not entitled to entertain
the same matter again unless the former decision is set aside by a court

of compéte juris,diction.

The court has found proper to state here that, the position of the
law provided under section 9 of the CPC which the counsel for the
defendants used to support his second point of preliminary objection has
been considered in number of caées. which oné of them is Peniel Lotta
(supra) where it was stated that: -

"The object of the doctrine of re_é Judicata is to bar the
multiplicity of suit and guarantee finality to litigation. It makes
conclusive a final Judgment between the same parties or their

privies on the same issue by a court of competent jurisdiction in
the subject malter of the suit”.

The factors or conditions which need to be taken into consideration
when determine a matter is in vio,i.ation' of section 9 of the CPC were well
summarized in the case of Peniel Lotta (supré) and were also refefred
in the case of Yohana Dismas Nyaki'be;ri & Another V. _Lushoto Tea
Company Limited 81 Two Others, Ci;/il Appeal No. 2008, CAT at Tanga
(unreported) Where it was stated that;: -

"There are. five conditions which must co-exist before the
doctrine of res judicata can be invoked. These are; (i) the matter

directly and substantialy in issue in the subsequent suit must
have been directly and substantially in issue in the former suit;
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(i) the former suit must ha ve been between the same parties or
privies claiming under them; (iii) the parties must have litigated
' under the same title in t{?g former suit; (iv) the court which
decided the former suit nﬁ;st have been Eérﬁpetent tc_v_.tf):/' the
subsequent suit and (v) thé matter -in [ssue* must have been

heard and finally decided in the former suit”

VWhile being guided by the position of the law stated hereinabove
the court has found the issue to detérmihe here is whether the present
suit is res judicata and the court is functus officio to entertain it. After
going through the pleadings and deéision of the court in respect of Land
Case No. 426 of 2017 which fhe cdunsél for t'He defend;mts argued is
causing the court to be functus officio to entertain the 'cﬁrrv:-_:nt_ suit asitis
res judicata to the former suit, the court has failed to side with the

arguments fronted by the counsel for the defendants.

The court has come to the stated finding after seeing that, although
the parties in the fdr_mer suit are also partieé in the current suit but in the
current suit there are parties who were not parties in the former matter.
The court has found while the 3 plaintiff was a sole plaintiff in the former
suit and the defendants were only' the 5% and 6% defendants, the rest of
the parties ih the current suit were not parties in the former suit. The
court has found that, although the' counsel for the defendants argued the
1%t and 2"9 plaintiffs are directoré of the 3"',p[ain§iff something which would

have made them privies to the 3" plaintiffs but the issues and reliefs
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sought in the former suit are quite different from the issues and reliefs

the plaintiffs are seeking from this court.

The court has arrived to the stated .ﬁndir_lg after seeing-that, while
fhe’ prayer of the 3™ plaintiff in tﬁe former suit was a -declaratory order
that the 5% defendant was withHo[ding th'é certificate of title of the suit
property without any probable cause or jus;,tiﬁcation, the claims and prayer
of the plaintiffs in the current suit is forwd‘eclara‘tory‘ orders that the 1%t to
6th defendants, forged the corporate guarantee agreement, board
resolution and mortgage deed used to secure the loan advanced to the
6t defendant. Therefore, while the cause of action in the former suit was
based on breach of contract the current suit is based on fraud and forgery
which as rightly'argued by the counsei for the plaintiﬁ’s were never raised

in the former suit and were not in issue in the former suit.

Under that circumstances the court has found that, as it was held in
the cases of Hamza Byarushengo V Mwanga Hakika Microfinance
Bank Limited, Land Case No. 45 of 2019, HC Land Division at DSM,
(unreported) and Peniel Lotta (supra) that, the five conditions required
for the brinciple of res judicata to stand must co-exist and they are not in
co-existence in the mentioned two suits, the court has found the principle

of res judicata cannot be applied in the matter ‘at hand. In the premises
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the court has found it is not functus officio to entertain the current suit

and the suit is not res judicate to the Land Case No. 426 of 2017,

With regards to the third and fourth points of preliminary‘ objections
whjch states the court has'np jUrisdIctibn to entertain the current suit
because of the notice of appeal filed in the court on 28t Juﬁe, 2021 and
is offénding section '8 of the CPC in vie\}\} of Civil Appeal No. 57 of 2022
and Civil Application No. 449/2017 of 2021 ﬂlé‘d in the Couft of Appeal by
3d p[aintiff the coﬁnsel for defendants argued them together and the
counsel for the plaintiffs argued them separately. The court has found the
counsel for the defendants afgued that, although the appeal and the
application mentioned ‘hereinabove upon which ~the third and fourth
preliminary objections were being hinged have already been withdrawn
from the Court of Appeal but he prayed the couft to disrégard withdrawa[
of the stated appeal and application and proceed with determination of

the 3 and 4% points of preliminary objections.

The court has found the basis of the prayer by the counsel for the
defendants for the court to continue to -det(_armine the mentiqned two
objections is that the notice to withdraw the appeal and the application
which were pending in the Court of.Abpea[ was filed in the Court of Appeal
on 8™ April, 2022 which is after the plaintiffs being served with the copy

of the notice of preliminary objections on 1% April, 2022. The court has

32



[ X

%o

f_ound that, even if it will be_accepted the notice to withdraw the stated
appeal and application from the (;ourt of Apoeal was ﬁled in the Court of
Appeal after the plaintiffs be.i.ng:served :w'ith the notice of -preliminary
objectlon F Ied in the court by the counsel for the defendants but as rlghtly

argued by the counsel for the plalnt:ffs the stated appeal and appllcatton

which originated from Land Case No 426 of 2017 had no relationship

whatsoever wuth the current suit.

The court has arrived to the stated ﬁnding ,afte'r'seeing it has already
bee_n_found in the second point of preliminary. objection that the matter
béfore the court is quite differenti._from .the isse determined in the Land
Case No. 426 of 2017. If the su'it at hand is different frorn the mentioned
former suit, there is no way it can‘l be‘said the c'ou‘rt has no jurisdiction to
entertain the present suit basing on the ground that the present suxt is
contravenlng section 8 of the CPC In the premlses the court has found
the cases of John M. Byomballrwa and Standard Chartered Bank
(supra) cited i‘n the submission of the_.éounsel for the defendants are not

relevant in the matter at hand.

It is because of the foregoing stated reasons the court has found all
the points of preliminary objections raised, by the counsel for defendants
cannot be upheld as they have not been established to the extent of being

upheld. Consequently, all the{fooints ;of" oreliminary objections. ratsed by
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the counsel for the defendants are hereby overruled in their entirety for

being devoid of merit and the costs to follow the event. It is so ordered.

Dated at Dar es Salaam this 18" day of May, 2023

74 L. Arufani
B e
Sy /) 18/05/2023

Cdurt; by

Ruling delivered today 18" day of May, 2023 in the presence of Mr.
John Laswai, learned advocate holding griéf for Ms. Anna Lugendo,
learned advocate for the plaintiffs and Mr. John Lasawi is also appearing
for the 2, 39, 4th, 5% and 7" defendants. The ruling has been delivered
ex parte against the 1 and 6™ defendants as they were dully served but
failed to appear in the court. Right of appeal to the Court of Appeal is fully

explained.

DU 2 Gt
SRR /) JUDGE
\ DIy 18/05/2023
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